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the Office of Personnel Management
regulations at 5 CFR part 930.
[72 FR 53878, Sept. 20, 2007, as amended at 74

FR 4635, Jan. 26, 2009; 87 FR 8196, Feb. 14,
2022]

§20.5 Jurisdiction of Office of Hear-
ings and Appeals.

The Office of Hearings and Appeals
shall, consistent with statute and regu-
lation, have jurisdiction over matters
assigned to it by the Secretary or des-
ignee. Determinations shall have the
finality provided by the applicable
statute, regulation, or agreement.

[72 FR 53878, Sept. 20, 2007, as amended at 87
FR 8196, Feb. 14, 2022]

PART 24—GOVERNMENTWIDE DE-
BARMENT AND SUSPENSION
(NONPROCUREMENT)

AUTHORITY: 42 U.S.C. 3535(d).

§24.1 Debarment and
(Nonprocurement).
The policies, procedures, and require-
ments for debarment, suspension, and
limited denial of participation are set
forth in 2 CFR part 2424.

[72 FR 73491, Dec. 27, 2007]

PART 25—MORTGAGEE REVIEW
BOARD

Suspension

Sec.
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25.17 [Reserved]

AUTHORITY: 12 U.S.C. 1708(c), 1708(d),
1709(s), 1715b and 1735(f)-14; 42 U.S.C. 3535(d).

§25.2

SOURCE: 57 FR 31051, July 13, 1992, unless
otherwise noted.

§25.1 Scope of rules in this part.

The rules in this part are applicable
to the operation of the Mortgagee Re-
view Board and to proceedings arising
from administrative actions of the
Mortgagee Review Board.

§25.2 Establishment and authority of
Board.

(a) Establishment of the Board. The
Mortgagee Review Board (Board) was
established in the Federal Housing Ad-
ministration, which is in the Office of
the Assistant Secretary for Housing—
Federal Housing Commissioner, by sec-
tion 202(c)(1) of the National Housing
Act (12 U.S.C. 1708(c)(1)), as added by
section 142 of the Department of Hous-
ing and Urban Development Reform
Act of 1989 (Pub. L. 101-235, approved
December 15, 1989).

(b) Authority of the Board. The Board
has the authority to initiate adminis-
trative actions against mortgagees and
lenders under 12 U.S.C. 1708(c) and shall
exercise all of the functions of the Sec-
retary with respect to administrative
actions against mortgagees and lenders
and such other functions as are pro-
vided in this part. The Board shall have
all powers necessary and incident to
the performance of these functions and
such other functions as are provided in
this part, except as limited by this
part.

(1) Administrative Actions. The Board
has the authority to take any adminis-
trative action against mortgagees and
lenders as provided in 12 U.S.C. 1708(c).
The Board may delegate its authority
to take all nondiscretionary acts.

(2) Civil Money Penalties. The Board is
authorized pursuant to section 536 of
the National Housing Act (12 U.S.C.
1735(f)-14) to impose civil money pen-
alties upon mortgagees and lenders, as
set forth in 24 CFR part 30. The viola-
tions for which a civil money penalty
may be imposed are listed in subpart B
(Violations) of 24 CFR part 30. Hearings
to challenge the imposition of civil
money penalties shall be conducted ac-
cording to the applicable rules of 24
CFR part 30.
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(3) Authorization for other administra-
tive actions. The Board may, in its dis-
cretion, approve the initiation of a sus-
pension or debarment action against a
mortgagee or lender by any Suspending
or Debarring Official under 24 CFR part
24.

[73 FR 60540, Oct. 10, 2008]

§25.3 Definitions.

Adequate evidence. Information suffi-
cient to support the reasonable belief
that a particular act or omission has
occurred.

Board. The Mortgagee Review Board.

Lender. A financial institution as de-
fined in paragraphs (a) and (b) of the
definition of lender in §202.2 of this
title.

Mortgagee. For purposes of this part,
the term ‘‘mortgagee’ includes:

(1) The original lender under the
mortgage, as that term is defined at
sections 201(a) and 207(a)(1) of the Na-
tional Housing Act (12 U.S.C. 1707(a),
1713(a)(1));

(2) A lender, as defined in this sec-
tion;

(3) A branch office or subsidiary of
the mortgagee or lender; or

(4) Successors and assigns of the
mortgagee or lender, as are approved
by the Commissioner.

Person. Any individual, corporation,
partnership, association, unit of gov-
ernment or legal entity, however orga-
nized.

Secretary. The Secretary of the De-
partment of Housing and Urban Devel-
opment or a person designated by the
Secretary.

[67 FR 31051, July 13, 1992; 57 FR 37085, Aug.
18, 1992, as amended at 60 FR 13835, Mar. 14,
1995; 60 FR 39237, Aug. 1, 1995; 61 FR 685, Jan.
9, 1996; 62 FR 20081, Apr. 24, 1997; 72 FR 53878,
Sept. 20, 2007; 73 FR 60540, Oct. 10, 2008; 77 FR
51467, Aug. 24, 2012]

§25.4 Operation of the Mortgagee Re-
view Board.

(a) Members. The Board consists of
the following HUD officials designated
to serve on the Board by section
202(c)(2) of the National Housing Act
(12 U.S.C. 1708(c)(2)):

(1) The Assistant Secretary of Hous-
ing-Federal Housing Commissioner;

(2) The General Counsel of the De-
partment;
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(3) The President of the Government
National Mortgage Association
(GNMA);

(4) The Assistant Secretary for Ad-
ministration;

(5) The Assistant Secretary for Fair
Housing and Equal Opportunity (in
cases involving violations of non-
discrimination requirements);

(6) The Chief Financial Officer of the
Department; and

(7) The Director of the Enforcement
Center; or their designees.

(b) Advisors. The Inspector General or
his or her designee, and the Director of
the Office of Lender Activities and Pro-
gram Compliance (or such other posi-
tion as may be assigned such duties),
and such other persons as the Board
may appoint, shall serve as nonvoting
advisors to the Board.

(¢) Quorum. Four members of the
Board or their designees shall con-
stitute a quorum.

(d) Determination by the Board. Any
administrative action taken by the
Board shall be determined by a major-
ity vote of the quorum.

[67 FR 31051, July 13, 1992; 57 FR 37085, Aug.
18, 1992, as amended at 73 FR 60540, Oct. 10,
2008]

§25.5 Administrative actions.

(a) General. The Board is authorized
to take administrative actions in ac-
cordance with 12 U.S.C. 1708(c), includ-
ing, but not limited to, the following:
issue a letter of reprimand, probation,
suspension, or withdrawal; or enter
into a settlement agreement.

(b) Letter of reprimand. A letter of rep-
rimand shall be effective upon receipt
of the letter by the mortgagee. Failure
to comply with a directive in the letter
of reprimand may result in any other
administrative action that the Board
finds appropriate as provided by 12
U.S.C. 1708(c).

(c) Probation. Probation shall be ef-
fective upon receipt of the notice of
probation by the mortgagee. Failure to
comply with the terms of probation
may result in any other administrative
action that the Board finds appropriate
as provided by 12 U.S.C. 1708(c).
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(d) Suspension—(1) Effect of suspen-
sion. (i) During the period of suspen-
sion, HUD will not endorse any mort-
gage originated by the suspended mort-
gagee under the Title II program unless
prior to the date of suspension:

(A) A firm commitment has been
issued relating to any such mortgage;
or

(B) A Direct Endorsement under-
writer has approved the mortgagor for
any such mortgage.

(ii) During the period of suspension, a
lender may not originate new Title I
loans under its Title I Contract of In-
surance or apply for a new Contract of
Insurance.

(2) Effective date of suspension. A sus-
pension issued pursuant to §25.7(d) is
effective upon issuance. Any other sus-
pension is effective upon receipt of the
notice of suspension by the mortgagee.

(e) Withdrawal—(1) Effect of with-
drawal. (i) During the period of with-
drawal, HUD will not endorse any
mortgage originated by the withdrawn
mortgagee under the Title II program,
unless prior to the date of withdrawal:

(A) A firm commitment has been
issued relating to any such mortgage;
or

(B) A Direct Endorsement under-
writer has approved the mortgagor for
any such mortgage.

(ii) During the period of withdrawal,
a lender may not originate new Title I
loans under its Title I Contract of In-
surance or apply for a new Contract of
Insurance. The Board may limit the
geographical extent of the withdrawal,
or limit its scope (e.g., to either the
single family or multifamily activities
of a withdrawn mortgagee). Upon the
expiration of the period of withdrawal,
the mortgagee may file a new applica-
tion for approval under 24 CFR part 202.

(2) Effective date of withdrawal. (i) If
the Board determines that immediate
action is in the public interest or in
the best interests of the Department,
then withdrawal shall be effective upon
receipt of the Board’s notice of with-
drawal.

(ii) If the Board does not determine
that immediate action is necessary ac-
cording to paragraph (e)(2)(i) of this
section, then withdrawal shall be effec-
tive either:

§25.6

(A) Upon the expiration of the 30-day
period specified in §25.10, if the mort-
gagee has not requested a hearing; or

(B) Upon receipt of the Board’s deci-
sion under §25.10, if the mortgagee re-
quests a hearing.

[73 FR 60540, Oct. 10, 2008, as amended at 77
FR 51467, Aug. 24, 2012]

§25.6 Violations creating grounds for
administrative action.

Any administrative action imposed
under 12 U.S.C. 1708(c) shall be based
upon one or more of the following vio-
lations:

(a) The transfer of an insured mort-
gage to non-approved mortgagee, ex-
cept pursuant to 24 CFR 203.433 or
203.435;

(b) The failure of a mortgagee to seg-
regate all escrow funds received from
mortgagors on account of ground rents,
taxes, assessments and insurance pre-
miums, or failure to deposit these
funds with one or more financial insti-
tutions in a special account or ac-
counts that are fully insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
or by the National Credit Union Ad-
ministration except as otherwise pro-
vided in writing by the Assistant Sec-
retary for Housing—Federal Housing
Commissioner;

(c) The use of escrow funds for any
purpose other than that for which they
are received;

(d) The termination of a mortgagee’s
supervision by a governmental agency;

(e) The failure of a nonsupervised
mortgagee to submit the required an-
nual audit report of its financial condi-
tion prepared in accordance with in-
structions issued by the Secretary
within 90 days of the close of its fiscal
year, or such longer period as the As-
sistant Secretary of Housing—Federal
Housing Commissioner may authorize
in writing prior to the expiration of 90
days;

(f) The payment by a mortgagee of a
referral fee to any person or organiza-
tion; or payment of any thing of value,
directly or indirectly, in connection
with any insured mortgage transaction
or transactions to any person, includ-
ing but not limited to an attorney, es-
crow agent, title company, consultant,
mortgage broker, seller, builder or real
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estate agent, if that person has re-
ceived any other compensation from
the mortgagor, the seller, the builder
or any other person for services related
to such transactions or from or related
to the purchase or sale of the mort-
gaged property, except compensation
paid for the actual performance of such
services as may be approved by the As-
sistant Secretary for Housing—Federal
Housing Commissioner;

(g) Failure to comply with any agree-
ment, certification, undertaking, or
condition of approval listed on, or ap-
plicable to, either a mortgagee’s appli-
cation for approval or an approved
mortgagee’s branch office notification;

(h) Failure of an approved mortgagee
to meet or maintain the applicable net
worth, liquidity or warehouse line of
credit requirements of 24 CFR part 202
pertaining to net worth, liquid assets,
and warehouse line of credit or other
acceptable funding plan;

(i) Failure or refusal of an approved
mortgagee to comply with an order of
the Board, the Secretary, the hearing
official, hearing officer or other inde-
pendent official to whom matters are
referred under §25.8(d)(2).

(j) Violation of the requirements of
any contract or agreement with the
Department, or violation of the re-
quirements set forth in any statute,
regulation, handbook, mortgagee let-
ter, or other written rule or instruc-
tion;

(k) Submission of false information
to HUD in connection with any HUD/
FHA insured mortgage transaction;

(1) Failure of a mortgagee to respond
to inquiries from the Board;

(m) Indictment or conviction of a
mortgagee or any of its officers, direc-
tors, principals or employees for an of-
fense which reflects upon the responsi-
bility, integrity, or ability of the mort-
gagee to participate in HUD/FHA pro-
grams as an approved mortgagee;

(n) Employing or retaining:

(1) An officer, partner, director, or
principal at such time when such per-
son was suspended, debarred, ineligible,
or subject to a limited denial of par-
ticipation under 2 CFR part 2424 or oth-
erwise prohibited from participation in
HUD programs, where the mortgagee
knew or should have known of the pro-
hibition;

24 CFR Subtitle A (4-1-23 Edition)

(2) An employee who is not an officer,
partner, director, or principal and who
is or will be working on HUD/FHA pro-
gram matters at a time when such per-
son was suspended, debarred, ineligible,
or subject to a limited denial of par-
ticipation under 2 CFR part 2424 or oth-
erwise prohibited from participation in
HUD programs, where the mortgagee
knew or should have known of the pro-
hibition;

(o) Violation by an approved mort-
gagee of the mnondiscrimination re-
quirements of the Equal Credit Oppor-
tunity Act (156 U.S.C. 1691-1691f), Fair
Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601-3619), Exec-
utive Order 11063 (27 FR 11527), and all
regulations issued pursuant thereto;

(p) Business practices which do not
conform to generally accepted prac-
tices of prudent mortgagees or which
demonstrate irresponsibility;

(q) Failure to cooperate with an
audit or investigation by the Depart-
ment’s Office of Inspector General or
an inquiry by HUD/FHA into the con-
duct of the mortgagee’s HUD/FHA in-
sured business or any other failure to
provide information to the Secretary
or a representative related to the con-
duct of the mortgagee’s HUD/FHA busi-
ness;

(r) Violation by an approved mort-
gagee of the requirements or prohibi-
tions of the Real Estate Settlement
Procedures Act (12 U.S.C. 2601-2617);

(s) Without regard to the date of the
insurance of the mortgage, failure to
service an insured mortgage in accord-
ance with the regulations and any
other requirements of the Secretary
which are in effect at the time the act
or omission occurs;

(t) Failure to administer properly an
assistance payment contract under sec-
tion 235 of the National Housing Act (12
U.S.C. 1716z);

(u) Failure to pay the application and
annual fees required by 24 CFR part
202;

(v) The failure of a coinsuring mort-
gagee:

(1) To properly perform underwriting,
servicing or property disposition func-
tions in accordance with instructions
and standards issued by the Commis-
sioner;
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(2) To make full payment to an in-
vesting mortgagee as required by 24
CFR part 204;

(3) To discharge responsibilities
under a contract for coinsurance;

(4) To comply with restrictions con-
cerning the transfer of a coinsured
mortgage to an agency not approved
under 24 CFR part 250;

(5) To maintain additional net worth
requirements, as applicable;

(w) Failure to remit, or timely remit,
mortgage insurance premiums, loan in-
surance charges, late charges, or inter-
est penalties to the Department;

(x) Failure to submit a report re-
quired under 24 CFR 202.12(c) within
the time determined by the Commis-
sioner, or to commence or complete a
plan for corrective action under that
section within the time agreed upon
with the Commissioner.

(y) Failure to properly perform un-
derwriting functions in accordance
with instructions and standards issued
by the Department;

(z) Failure to fund mortgage loans or
any other misuse of mortgage loan pro-
ceeds;

(aa) Permitting the use of
strawbuyer mortgagors in an insured
mortgage transaction where the mort-
gagee knew or should have known of
such use of strawbuyers;

(bb) Breach by the mortgagee of a fi-
duciary duty owed by it to any person
as defined in §25.3, including GNMA
and the holder of any mortgage-backed
security guaranteed by GNMA, with re-
spect to an insured loan or mortgage
transaction.

(cc) Violation by a Title I lender of
any of the applicable provisions of this
section or 24 CFR 202.11(a)(2).

(dd) Failure to pay any civil money
penalty, but only after all administra-
tive appeals requested by the mort-
gagee have been exhausted.

(ee) Submitting, or causing to be sub-
mitted, with an application for FHA
mortgage insurance an appraisal, valu-
ation condition sheet, or any other
documentation relating to an appraisal
that does not satisfy FHA require-
ments.

(ff) Any other violation of Federal
Housing Administration requirements
that the Board or the Secretary deter-

§25.7

mines to be so serious as to justify an
administrative sanction.

(Approved by the Office of Management and
Budget under Control Number 2502-0450)

[67 FR 31051, July 13, 1992; 57 FR 37085, Aug.
18, 1992, as amended at 57 FR 58339, Dec. 9,
1992; 60 FR 13836, Mar. 14, 1995; 60 FR 39238,
Aug. 1, 1995; 61 FR 685, Jan. 9, 1996; 62 FR
20081, Apr. 24, 1997; 69 FR 43509, July 20, 2004;
72 FR 73492, Dec. 27, 2007. Redesignated and
amended at 73 FR 60541, Oct. 10, 2008; 77 FR
51467, Aug. 24, 2012]

§25.7 Notice of violation.

(a) General. The Chairperson of the
Board, or the Chairperson’s designee,
shall issue a written notice to the
mortgagee at the mortgagee’s address
of record at least 30 days prior to tak-
ing any action under 12 U.S.C. 1708(c)
against the mortgagee. Proof of deliv-
ery to the mortgagee’s address of
record shall establish the mortgagee’s
receipt of the notice. The notice shall
state the specific violations that have
been alleged, and shall direct the mort-
gagee to reply in writing to the Board
within 30 days after receipt of the no-
tice by the mortgagee. The notice shall
also provide the address to which the
response shall be sent. If the mortgagee
fails to reply during such time period,
the Board may make a determination
without considering any comments of
the mortgagee.

(b) Mortgagee’s response. The mortga-
gee’s response to the Board shall be in
a format prescribed by the Secretary
and shall not exceed 15 double-spaced
typewritten pages. The response shall
include an executive summary, a state-
ment of the facts surrounding the mat-
ter, an argument, and a conclusion.
Such response shall also address the
factors listed in §25.8. A more lengthy
submission, including documents and
other exhibits, may be simultaneously
submitted to Board staff for review.

(c) Exception for letter of reprimand.
Whenever information comes before
the Board that discloses a basis for the
issuance of a letter of reprimand, the
Board may issue the letter without
having previously issued a notice of
violation.

(d) Exception for immediate suspension.
If the Board determines that there ex-
ists adequate evidence that immediate
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action is required to protect the finan-
cial interests of the Department or the
public, the Board may take a suspen-
sion action without having previously
issued a notice of violation.

[73 FR 60541, Oct. 10, 2008]

§25.8 Factors considered in taking ad-
ministrative action.

In determining which administrative
action under 12 U.S.C. 1708(c), if any,
should be taken, the Board will con-
sider, among other factors, the serious-
ness and extent of the violations, the
degree of mortgagee responsibility for
the occurrences, and any other miti-
gating or aggravating facts. Where the
Board is considering a withdrawal ac-
tion, the Board will also consider
whether the violations were egregious
or willful, in order to determine wheth-
er a permanent withdrawal is man-
dated by 12 U.S.C. 1708(c).

[73 FR 60541, Oct. 10, 2008]

§25.9 Notice of administrative action.

(a) Whenever the Board decides to
take an action in accordance with 12
U.S.C. 1708(c)(3), the Chairperson of the
Board, or the Chairperson’s designee,
shall issue a written notice of the ac-
tion to the mortgagee at the mortga-
gee’s address of record of the deter-
mination. Proof of delivery to the
mortgagee’s address of record shall es-
tablish the mortgagee’s receipt of the
notice.

(b) In actions for probation, suspen-
sion, or withdrawal, the notice shall
describe the nature and duration of the
administrative action, and shall spe-
cifically state the reasons for the ac-
tion. In actions for probation, suspen-
sion, or withdrawal, the notice shall in-
form the mortgagee of its right to a
hearing regarding the administrative
action and of the manner and time in
which to request a hearing.

[73 FR 60541, Oct. 10, 2008]

§25.10 Hearings and hearing request.

(a) Hearing request. A mortgagee sub-
ject to any administrative action under
12 U.S.C. 1708(c), except for a letter of
reprimand, may request a hearing,
which shall be held on the record be-
fore an administrative law judge. The
mortgagee shall submit its request for

24 CFR Subtitle A (4-1-23 Edition)

a hearing within 30 days of receiving
the Board’s notice of administrative
action. The request shall be addressed
to the Mortgagee Review Board Docket
Clerk, Department of Housing and
Urban Development, 451 Tth Street,
SW., Washington, DC 20410. The request
shall specifically respond to the viola-
tions set forth in the notice of adminis-
trative action. If the mortgagee fails to
request a hearing within 30 days after
receiving the notice of administrative
action, the Board’s action shall become
final.

(b) Hearing by Administrative Law
Judge. Hearings are to be conducted by
an Administrative Law Judge (ALJ), as
set forth in this part. The ALJ shall
commence a de novo hearing within 30
days of HUD’s receipt of the mortga-
gee’s request, unless the mortgagee
moves for an extension of time. The
ALJ may extend this time period for
good cause.

(c) Procedural rules. The hearing shall
be conducted in accordance with the
applicable provisions of 24 CFR part 26,
with the following modifications:

(1) The mortgagee or its representa-
tive shall be afforded an opportunity to
appear, submit documentary evidence,
present witnesses, and confront any
witness the agency presents, except
that the parties shall not be allowed to
present members of the Board as wit-
nesses.

(2) Discovery of information and/or
documents that do not pertain to the
appealing mortgagee, including, but
not limited to, reviews or audits by the
Department or administrative actions
by the Board against mortgagees other
than the appealing mortgagee, shall
not be permitted. Members of the
Board shall not be subject to deposi-
tion.

(3) The hearing shall generally be
held in Washington, DC. However, upon
a showing of undue hardship or other
cause, the ALJ may, in his or her dis-
cretion, order the hearing to be held in
a location other than Washington, DC.

[73 FR 60542, Oct. 10, 2008]

§25.11 Modification of Board orders.

No order of an ALJ before whom pro-
ceedings are conducted under §25.10
may modify or otherwise disturb in
any way an order or notice by the
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Board, unless the order of the ALJ be-
comes final agency action in accord-
ance with subpart B of part 26 of this
title.

[73 FR 60542, Oct. 10, 2008]

§25.12 Public access to information;
publication of actions.

(a) Where a notice of administrative
action does not result in a hearing and
in any cases in which a settlement is
entered into by the Board and a mort-
gagee, all non-privileged information
regarding the nature of the violation
and the resolution of the action shall
be available to the public.

(b) Publication in the FEDERAL REG-
ISTER. The Secretary shall publish, in
the FEDERAL REGISTER, a description of
and the cause for each administrative
action taken by the Board against a
mortgagee.

(c) Notification of other agencies.
Whenever the Board has taken any dis-
cretionary action to suspend and/or
withdraw the approval of a mortgagee,
the Secretary shall provide prompt no-
tice of the action and a statement of
the reasons for the action to the Sec-
retary of Veterans Affairs; the chief ex-
ecutive officer of the Federal National
Mortgage Association; the chief execu-
tive officer of the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation; the Adminis-
trator of the Rural Housing Service
(formerly the Farmers Home Adminis-
tration); the Comptroller of the Cur-
rency, if the mortgagee is a National
Bank or District Bank or subsidiary or
affiliate of such a bank; the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve Sys-
tem, if the mortgagee is a state bank
that is a member of the Federal Re-
serve System or a subsidiary or affil-
iate of such a bank, or a bank holding
company or a subsidiary or affiliate of
such a company; the Board of Directors
of the Federal Deposit Insurance Cor-
poration, if the mortgagee is a state
bank that is not a member of the Fed-
eral Reserve System, or is a subsidiary
or affiliate of such a bank; and the Di-
rector of the Office of Thrift Super-
vision, if the mortgagee is a federal or
state savings association or a sub-
sidiary or affiliate of a savings associa-
tion.

(d) Notification to GNMA of withdrawal
actions. Whenever the Board issues a

Pt. 26

notice of violation that could lead to
withdrawal of a mortgagee’s approval,
or is notified by GNMA of an action
that could lead to withdrawal of GNMA
approval, the Board shall proceed in ac-
cordance with 12 U.S.C. 1708(d).

[73 FR 60542, Oct. 10, 2008]

§25.13 Notifying GNMA of withdrawal
actions.

When the Board issues a notice of
violation that could lead to withdrawal
of a mortgagee’s approval, or is noti-
fied by GNMA of an action that could
lead to withdrawal of GNMA approval,
the Board shall proceed in accordance
with 12 U.S.C. 1708(d).

(Approved by the Office of Management and
Budget under Control Number 2502-0450)

[61 FR 685, Jan. 9, 1996]

§25.15 Retroactive
Board regulations.

application of

Limitations on participation in HUD
mortgage insurance programs proposed
or imposed prior to August 12, 1992,
under an ancillary procedure shall not
be affected by this part. This part shall
apply to sanctions initiated after the
effective date of the Department of
Housing and Urban Development Re-
form Act of 1989 (December 15, 1989) re-
gardless of the date of the cause giving
rise to the sanction.

[67 FR 31051, July 13, 1992. Redesignated at 61
FR 685, Jan. 9, 1996]

§25.17 [Reserved]

PART 26—HEARING PROCEDURES

Subpart A—Hearings Before Hearing
Officers

Sec.

26.1 Purpose and scope.

HEARING OFFICER

26.2
26.3
26.4
26.5

Hearing officer, powers, and duties.
Ex parte communications.
Sanctions.

Disqualification of hearing officer.

REPRESENTATION OF THE PARTIES

26.6
26.7
26.8

Department representative.
Respondent’s representative.
Standards of practice.
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